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Description.

The Boise Capitol Area District comprises several architecturally and/or historically
significant buildings and a monument. Built between 1904 and 1939, these buildings
represent the political hub of Idaho. The district consists of the Idaho State Capitol,
the Federal Building, the Ada County Courthouse, the Hotel Boise, the Steunenberg Monu-
];nenf: . and Saint Michael's Episcopal Cathedral, the Christian Science Bldg. and the Milton
6{5. 1%%@18tate Capitol fronts on Jefferson Street, the east-west axis of the district
The center section of this four-story Idaho sandstone structure was built between 1906
and 1912, and the wings were added in 1919 and 1920. The architectural -firm of Tourte-
‘1lotte and Hummel designed the entire structure, with H. E. Quigley serving as an
advisory architect.for the dome. The Building is highly reminiscent of -the National
Capitol and is distinguished by its dome, capped with a bronze eagle, and a three-story
portico with a pediment supported by four Corinthian columns. The wings have side
entrances and are decorated with Ionic columns. At 208 feet, the Capitol is the focus
of an excellent view from Capitol Boulevard.

(2). To the east of the Capitol is the Ada County Courthouse, which was constructed in
1939-1939 with the assistance of the WPA. This nine-story building was also designed

by Tourtellotte and Hummel, in conjunction with Wayland and Fennell. It is made of
Indiana limestone and is in the Moderne or Art Deco style. An extreme setback separates
the third and fourth stories, and the fifth to eighth stories form a tower which is
capped by an octagonal story. The eighth story has pinnacles which appear to be inspired
by Hugh Ferris drawings.

(3). To the west of the park area is the old Federal Building, which is on the northeast
corner of eighth and Bannock streets. The original portion, built in 1904, was designed
by the United States Treasury Bepartment while James Knox Taylor was supervising archi-
tect. The four~story stone and white brick building is one of the best examples of

Beaux Arts architecture in the region. The first floor has round arch windows and'a
similar doorway with excellent wrought iron decorations in the tympanum. The third

story is capped by a cornice supported by dentils, and the fourth story is appreviated

in a typical Renaissance manner to form a parapet. In 1930 a substantial addition was
built from the northwest corner to form an abbreviated L. This addition is stylistically
similar to the original structure.

(4). West of the Federal Building is Hotel Boise. Built in 1930 for W. E. Pierce and
Associates, this reinforced concrete, eleven-story edifice was the tallest commercial
structure in Boise for a generation. Chief designer was Frank Hummel of the firm of
Tourtellotte and Hummel.. The hotel is in the Moderne style and has an eleven-story

. corner tower with four-story wings extending on 8th Street and on Bannock Street. The
first floor is predominatly plate glass, having originally contained several shops.
The body of the building rises from this floor, with a mock setback between the seventh
and eighth stories. The eleventh story is set back, with diagonally cut-off corners,
and is a penthouse. The tenth floor is capped by Moderne pinnacles, reminiscent of
Hugh Ferris conceptualizations, as are the corners of the wings. Pilasters add to the
verticality of the structure, and interesting organically derived ornamentation appears
at the seventh and tenth floors of the tower and the fourth floor of the wings.

(5). Across from the Capitol is the Steunenberg Monument, which was erected in 1929 in
memory of ex~-governor Frank Steunenberg, assassinated in 1905. This standing bronze-
portrait was designed by Gilbert Riswold of Salt Lake City and was cast in Los Angeles
by Guido Ne)li. A park area surrounds the statue and relates well to the Capitol.
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Description (continued).

(6). St. Michael's Episcopal Cathedral is north of the Capitol on the northeast corner of
Eighth and State streets. This structure of Idaho sandstone was designed by Henry M.
Cogdon of New York City. Work began on the building in 1899 and was completed in 1902.

It is designed in the English Gothic style and is cruciform in plan, with the nave termin-
ating in a semicircular apse that is lighted by slender stained-glass windows. The most
prominent external feature of the cathedral is the corner tower, which measures 20" by 20!
and rises 135 feet to the peak of the slender spire. Although included in the original
plans, the tower was not completed until 1949.

(7). Christian Science Building. 315 North 8th. A charming, small two-story commercial
building marked by rich contrasts in texture and color. Brick is deep red and tan.
Stone is rusticated tan. The cornice is broken into three steps. The four second-story
windows are arched in light brick. Keystones are decorative. Built about 1910.

(8). The Milton Building. 317-19 N. 8th Street. This two-story commercial building was
~built in 1904. 1Its streetside facade is light grey brick with a small projecting cornice
supported by a series of small, blind brick arches. Upper floor windows are rectangular
with flat brick arches and store keystones. First floor storefronts have been remodeled

over the years. Second story offices fate a reéar-opening light well.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Boise was designatedzpefménéﬁtjférfitdrialbcépifaltof Idaho in December 1864, a year and

a half after the
of the townsite,
As the center of
district have an
together by some
Two of these, on

States:

community, was founded. Capitol Square soon became an important feature
although the territorial capitol was not actually completed until 1886.
Idaho's governmental complex, the varied buildings represented in this

imprtance and character of great interest.
of the city's finest park areas, with large old trees in great variety.
the Capitol grounds, were planted by visiting Presidents of the United

Benjamin Harrison and Theodore Roosevelt.

They are pleasingly bound

The greatest value to Idaho of recognizing the Boise Capitol Area District as an archi-
tecturally significant complex lies in calling attention to the worth of Moderne structures

as well as more traditional Classical revival ones.

The district includes the State

Capitol; the Federal Building; an important ad joining hotel which served as a major

political center during the depression and for many years after that; a park and monument
dedicated to !Frank Steunenberg, a former governor whose assassination in 1905 led to the
internationally famous conspiracy trial of William D. Haywood in 1907; and the Ada County

Courthouse, located on the site of the trial.

The Haywood Trial, along with some earlier

significant labor cases, took place in Ada County's previous courthouse--an earlier struct-
ure in which officials of the Coeur d'Alene miners unions decided to organize the Western
Federation of Miners (a minitant industrial union which provided the primary sponsorship

for the Industrial Workers of the World in 1905) in 1893.

The present Ada €ounty Court-

house houses a representative collection of Works Projects Administration murals char-

acteristic of the time it was constructed.

While not a politically oriented structure,

Saint Michael's Cathedral, immediately adjacent to the capitol, forms an important

architectural component of this historic district.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

From Sixth and Bannock west to the west end of Hotel Boise; nortn to tne north edge
of 319 North 8 Street; east to 8 Street; north to the alley between State and
Washington; east to the east edge of Saint Michael's Cathedral; south to State
Street; east to 5 Street; south to Jefferson Street; west to Sixth Street; souta

to Bannock Street.
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